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CRESCENT COLLEGE 1930 

Reorganized this year to better meet the needs of the modem American 
young woman's educational ambitions, Crescent college has a capacity for 
one hundred girls. Under the presidency of Dr. A. Q. Burns the college has 
made outstanding contributions to the educational life of the city among which 
may be mentioned, the organization of the rhythm band am.on~ the third and 
fourth grade pupils of the city schools, the direction of singmg in the city 
schools by Crescent's Voice Department, the initiation of class piano, class 
violin, and class expression for children from 9 to 14, the numerous appear­
ances of faculty and students in musical, literary and club meetings of the 
city. A modernized educational program, living conditions where every room 
has bath or bath connecting, where meals are served in courses, and a location 
in the mild and equable climate of the southern Ozarks, have attracted stu­
dents from 38 states in the union and bid fair to extend its clientele to a still 
wider field. 

HAROLD D. GRIFFIN 
Dean of Crescent College 

(From the catalog) 

B.S. in Education Tri-State Norm.al College, 1919; A. B. 
Bethany College, 1920; PH .. D. University of Missouri, 1929. 
Professor of English, Midland College, 1919-20; Professor of 
Social Studies. William Woods College, 1920-26 State Teachers 
College. Cape Girardea~ Mo., summer 1925; Professor of psychology and edu­
cation, State Teachers College, Valley City, N. Oak., summers.1927, 1928, 1929 
Tau Kappa Alpha, Phi Delta Kappa. 

C. HARRY ALLIS 
Director Conservatory of Art Crescent College 
Native of Ohio; University of Michigan, Detroit Museum of Fine Art; 

pupil of Harry Eaton of New York,. Instructor Detroit Museum of Art Bay 
View Academy. International exhibitor, Paris, Munich, London, Rome, major 
American aties presented in Hazelton Gallery, London; Musee des Beau 
Artx, Nemours, Gallery Modern, Munich,: University of Oregon, Ackerman 
Collection of California, L.A. dub Collection, Minneapolis, The Helen Gould 
Collection, Lyndhurst, N. J., Annual Exhibit, National Academy of Design, 
New York City, Detroit Institute of Fine Arts permanent collection. Member, 
Federation of American Artists, American Artists Professional League, The 
Bohemian Club of London, the Munich Society of American Painters, The 
Painters' dub of London., American Art Association of Paris, Honorary mem­
ber of Scarab Club of Detroit, National Arts Club of New York City, 
Salamagundi Club of New York City, Lime Rock Art Association of Connecti­
cut, etc. Ten years residence in France. Leading painter of Ozarkland. 
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GRADY COX 
Director of Music, Crescent College 

Graduate, Cincinnati Conservatory of Music; Student, American Con­
servatory, Wichita College of Music, Pupil of F. Shailer Evans; Scionti: Otto 
Fischer. Pupil of Gahlston and Bertram 1n Berlin. Head of piano and theory, 
Fairmount College, 1915-17; faculty of Cincinnati Conservatory of Music, 1917-
21; head of piano, Augustana College, 1924-26; Jackson College of Music, 1926-
28; director of music, Central College, 1928-29; European travel and a year's 
residence in Germany. Sinfonia fraternity; Arkansas State Music Teachers' 
Association. 

A.Q.BURNS 
President of Crescent College 

A. B. William Jewel Colle~e, 1915; B. D., Newton Theological Institu­
tion, 1916; Ph. D., Southern Baptist Theological Seminary. 1917; candidate for 
Ph.D., University of Chicago under fellowship appointment, 1923-24; profes­
sor of religious education. Hardin College, 1920-23; fellow, University of Chi­
cago, 1923-24; educational staff Literary Digest in Iowa 1924-28;, university 
representative, University of Chicago Press, 1928-29. Zeta Chi; Pi Kappa Delta. 

CRESCENT COLLEGE FOR GIRLS 

Eastern view of the main building. Beautiful native gray stone, five sto­
ries, redolent with Arkansas history, beautifully appointed, modern in every 
respect, on the crest of Crescent Mountain with vistas sweeping 120 miles 
from the observation tower. 
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ALBERT G. INGALLS 

Albert G. Ingalls, mayor. He has been called " the seer of the Ozarks." 
He was born at Pea Ridge, Ark., and spent the greater part of his early life in 
the Dakotas, moving to Eureka Springs in 1920. He is not at all embar­
rassed to tell that he was broke when he came here and also heavily in debt. 
Today he owns more property in Eureka Springs than any other man and has 
done much to increase its civic beauty. He bought many rundown buildings 
and tore them away or made them into modern attractive homes. 

He owns the Crescent hotel which is used as a preparatory college 
for girls nine months in the year. He also owns the Basin Park hotel, one of 
the finest in the state, the Palace bath house and Eureka Floral Shop. 
He has leased the Times-Echo and Flashlight. 

Mr. Ingalls suceeded Claude Fuller in 1929 and has proven a very efficient 
and propessive mayor and has given Eureka Springs an impetus that bids 
fair to nval that of the early days, and as we write the final chapter of our 
fiftieth year. Mayor Ingalls' name is written largely on the closing scroll. 

Since his induction to office there has been erected a modern and up-to­
date hospital, known as the Don Sawyer hospital, named in honor of Don 
Sawyer, the young son, deceased, of Mr. and Mrs. Fred Sawyer, and grandson 
of Mrs. Sarah DeLano. An airport has been purchased and the building of a 
new high school has been planned. Lake Crescent has been leased and put in 
fine condition as a natatonum. It is hoped that this native son will hold out as 
faithfully as he has begun and that the next fifty years shall witness the growth 
of his work. We might say that Mr. Ingalls is a disciple of John Ruskin when 
it comes to loving beauty, and his ''sanitary, clean-up, paint-up" administra­
tion has added new beauty and elegance to our city, and is an advertisement 
for any health resort. Joe McKimmey and Frank Jasper are his coworkers. 

CITY OFFICERS 

John Roberts, chief of police; Ami Howerton, night watch; Tom Harp, 
constable; Joe Davidson. justice of the peace; T. H. White, justice of the peace; 
Mrs. Dott Huffman, deputy circuit clerk; Jack Walker of Berryville is sheriff 
of Carroll county; John K Butt, deputy prosecuting attorney. 

CHURCHES 

Baptist Church-Pastor, Warren P. Clark. 
Methodist Church-Rev. Norris Greer. 
Presbyterian Church-Miss Ida Mitchell, leader. 
Episcopal Church-Rev. S. L. Rainey. 
Catholic Church-Father A. Metz. 
First Christian Church-Without pastor for the time being. 
Mountain Street Christian Church-Rev. I. H. Burgess. 
Pentecostal -Rev. P~ppers. 
Christian Science Church-Reader, Mrs. Laura E. Evans. 
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BANKS 

Senator F. 0. Butt is president of the First National bank and E.T. Smith, 
cashier. 

Wm. Kappen,, Sr., (deceased) was president of the Bank of Eureka 
Springs. A successor has not yet been named. W. G. Barker, who is the oldest 
banker from point of service, in Eureka Springs is cashier. · 

DRY GOODS STORE 

Walker Bros.' dry goods store is one of the largest and most up-to-date stores 
in Northwest Arkansas and is owned by three brothers-Floyd, Ernest, and 
Digby. They are natives of Carroll county and were born on a farm within a 
few miles Eureka Springs, where their father also was born and which is 
known as the Walker settlement so named in honor their grandfather, John S. 
Walker, who came to Carroll county in the nineteenth century and settled on 
a farm. There were six boys-Jute, the father of the Walker brothers, was a 
Christian minister; Tom Walker, who owns and operates a hardware store next 
door to the Walker Bros. store; Dan, Baptist preacher and father of Dal Walker, 
a grocery merchant on Main street; and Ab, a farmer who lives on the old 
farm. 

The Walkers have been outstanding characters in the early development of 
Carroll county and the younger generation deserve great credit in making 
Eureka Springs what it is today. The entire block consisting of the Grand Cen­
tral, Mashburn grocery store, Walker's hardware and Walker Bros.' store, are 
owned by them. 

Floyd began his career as a clerk in the Riley's dry goods store later buying 
it and making of it what it is today. He married Mrs. Minnie Martin. 

Rogers Bargain House, Spring street, is owned and operated by Mr. and 
Mrs. Leslie Rogers. 

Bonnie Lee Shop is owned by Mrs. Earl Newport and under the manage­
ment of Mrs. Elsie Baker. 

Mrs. Ida Chandler owns and operates a dry goods store on South Main 
street. 

Morton's Correct Millinery, largest ready-to-wear establishment in Eureka 
Springs, is operated by Mrs. H . F. Morton. · 

Raymond Hembree is the most recent addition to Eureka Springs' busi­
ness men, and operates an up-to-date men's ready-to-wear store. 

Payne's Novelty Shop is operated by Mr. and Mrs. A. C. Payne. 
Sterling Chain Store, managed by E B. Bingham. 
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College Shop is managed by Mr. and Mrs. R. J. Newman. 

H. R. Wright operates a shoe and furnishing store on Spring street. 

GROCERY STORES 

Grant Ash owns and operates a grocery store at the mouth of Mill Hollow 
in one of the oldest business buildings in town. It has many bullet holes in 
the ceiling that testify of the early saloon days in Eureka Springs when this 
building was a saloon. Mr. Ash's father was among our early settlers. 

Joe Morris operates a grocery, meat shop and feed store in the Lamar build­
ing on South Main street and 1s one Irishman that has made a success in Eu­
reka Springs. 

Mr. and Mrs. W. D. Weaver operate a grocery and feed store on South Main 
street and have just opened an up-to-date filling station at the junction of 
Main and Sprin$ streets. Both are natives of Arkansas. Mrs. Weaver is the 
great granddaughter of Dr. Alvah Jackson, founder of Eureka Springs. 

N. Bare operates a grocery store and meat market on Spring street and has 
been in busmess twenty-four years. 

Earl Newport has a grocery store and meat market on Spring street. He 
came to Eureka Springs when a small child and has been in business twenty­
eight years. 

Ed Rude owns and operates a grocery store on Main street where he has 
been in business twenty nine years. 

Mr. and Mrs. J. A. Messersmith own and operate a grocery and drug store 
on Main street. Been in business twenty one years. 

Chandler's grocery store is owned and operated by Ed Chandler who has 
been in business for over thirty years and has made a success, financially. 

Fred Sawyer owns and operates a gocery store in Newtown. 

J. D. Craig has a grocery store and filling station near the standpipe. 

Mrs. Mary McComb, grocery store on Mountain street. 

E. M. Guthrie-Grocery store, South Main. 

Sanitary Market grocery and meat market-Spring street. Steve Reid, owner 
and manager. 

Wm. Kappen Jr. owns and operates a first class grocery and meat market on 
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~est Mountain: He is a son. of Wm. Kappen. decea~ed, wh~ has played ~ 
rmportant part m the last thirty years of Eureka Spnngs havmg been a City 
commissioner, president of the Bank of Eureka Spnngs and filling many more 
important offices in our city. 

Harry Kimberling is one of Eureka Springs latest grocerymen. He bought 
the Osborn grocery store on corner of Prospect avenue and Singleton street. 

HARDWARE STORES 

C. W. Blair operates a hardware store on Spring street and has been in 
business twenty-eight years. 

Tom Harp operates a hardware store on Main street and a garage on Spring 
street. He is a descendant from the same family as the writer. 

Chandlers Hardware--South Main-is operated by C. S. Nay who came 
here in 1879 and clerked in a store owned by Rev. Setzer. This store was then 
located where the ice cream factory now is. While excavating for this building 
his father was blinded by a blast that accidentally went off near him. Mr. Nay 
married Mrs. Lulu Chandler in 1890. 

L. E. Holloway is one of Eureka Springs' disciples, having come here two 
years ago to die, as his physicians told him they could do nothing for him. But 
as many before him have done, instead of dying, lived and has gone into busi­
ness. He has a furniture store on West Mountain. 

DRUGSTORES 

H. T. Pendergrass came here in 1885. He owns the oldest drug store in 
town. His son, Bela, is now manager. 

Eureka Drug Company is owned by A. L. Hess and managed by his son 
and wife, Mr. and Mrs. Loy Hess. 

McLaughlin Drug store is owned by Thad McLaughlin. His brother, Ben, 
has assisted in the management for a number of years, another brother, Homer, 
was in the grocery business for a number of years. They came to Eureka Springs 
in 1881. Ben was an engineer on the M. & N. A. 

Dr. J. S. Porch, pioneer druggist of Eureka Springs, has been in the drug 
business over thirty years. 

BOOKSTORES 

S. A. Diehl came to Eureka Springs in 1900 and bought the Trmes-Echo 
and Flashlight and published them for sixteen years; then sold to his son, 
Webster, who a year ago leased them to Mayor Albert Ingalls. Mr. Diehl now 
owns and operates the Diehl Book Store on Spring street and is very promi-
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Miss Florence Jordan is l?roprietor of a book store and newsstand on Spring 
street where she has been m business a number of years. 

Her brother, EA.Jordan has a jewelry shop on Spring street and has been 
in business for nineteen years. 

SOUVENIR STORES 

Charley Stehm came to Eureka Springs in 1881 and earned money when 
a lad by slipping between the line of men and women who were waiting their 
turn for the Basin water, and filling pails for the impatient ones, who {'aid 
him generously. He also blacked shoes, sold papers and did many more things 
that an industrious boy can do. He now owns an attractive souvenir shop on 
Spring street. Charley loves to talk of the early days and recalls many inter­
esting things. 

Louie Webber is an .uold-timer". He owns and OP,erates a souvenir shop 
on Main street.There he has many curious and beautiful things to attract the 
passersby. 

BARBER SHOPS 

Henry Tallant operates a barber shop in the Messersmith building on 
Main street. 

Eaton Cole operates a barber shop and Readmore library on Main street 
· in the Walker building. 

Pioneer Tales 

Ross Graham and Henry Nagel-Elite barber shop, Spring street. 

Al Feltz operates Basin barber shop on Spring street. 

W. T. Clark, barber shop, Spring street. 

SHOE SHOPS 

W. H. Moody is a pioneer shoe co bbl er of Eureka Springs and is located 
on Spring street. Mr. Moody has been in business twenty-eight years. 

Albert Moody, son of W. H. Moody, operates the Electric Shoe Shop, 
located on Spring street. 

Jim Black operates a Shop on Spring street. 

WHOLESALE HOUSES 

The Berryville wholesale grocery company is managed by Ray Freeman. 
Mr. Freeman is a native of Berryville. His father, J. W. Freeman, played one of 
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the most important parts in the early history of Berryville and Carroll county. 

J. 0. Melone operates a wholesale grocery on Main street and has been 
in business in Eureka Springs forty-six years. 

NEWSPAPERS 

The Daily Trmes-Echo, owned by Webster Diehl,. leased to Mayor Ingalls, 
is edited by Darsie Ellington. 

The Carroll Courier, owned by Senator F. 0. Butt and sons, John and Robert, 
and George Wiswell, is edited by Mrs. Annie House, a pioneer newspaper 
woman. 

PHYSICIANS 

Dr. J. F. John is a native, having been born and reared at Stuttgart, Ark. He 
has practiced medicine in Eureka Springs for nineteen years. He has a large 
practice and perhaps no doctor in the city answers more calls than he. 

Dr. J. R. Parker is a surgeon of much note and is wonderfully successful in 
operating. He is the manager of the Don Sawyer Memorial hospital. 

Dr. Pearl Tatman came to Eureka Springs when only a girl just out of school 
and became physician and surgeon for the Tunnel company of the M. & N.A. 
railroad. Her name was then Hale. She later married Dr. Albert Tatman of this 
city, who was also a practicing physician, but is now deceased. Dr. Pearl's 
name will ever be remembered to the citizens of Eureka Springs to whom she 
has ministered so unselfishly and long. 

Dr. Henry Pace was born and reared in Harrison, Ark., and came to Eu­
reka Springs twenty-five years ago and set up his office where he has re­
mained ever since. He is still in the same building where he had his first 
office. Dr.Pace is a native of whom we are justly proud and is widely known 
for his skill as a physician and surgeon. 

Dr. J. H. Webb was here in the early days and when Claude Fuller was 
shining shoes on Spring street, he was peddling vegetables on Main. Dr. 
Webb's father was a Cherokee Indian, and was with those driven by Capt. 
John Carroll from Tennessee to the Indian Nation (Oklahoma). 

Dr. R. H. Huntington, eye, nose and throat specialist, for years operated 
the Huntington hospital which was discontinued in 1929. 

Dr. W. B. Haynes, dentist, came to Eureka Springs shortly after graduat­
ing from a dental school three seasons ago. He is a young man of much prom­
ise and has built up a good business in his short stay in our city. 

Dr. Charles Bergstresser, dentist, is well known to the citizens of North­
west Arkansas having been a practicing dentist in Eureka Springs for the past 
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twenty-five years. 

Dr. V. T. Sanford. Osteopathic physician came to Eureka S_Prings to live 
in 1928. He first came in 1904 for a short while and after leaving could not 
overcome the desire to return and make his home in the City of Healing wa­
ters which he has done, and is now building up a good practice and has won 
many friends. 

HOTELS, RESTAURANTS AND CAPES 

Palace hotel and bath house is managed by 0. R. Renfroe. 

Sweet Spring Home, owned by Mrs. Arch Kimberling and is operated 
by Mrs .. J enrue Pinkley-Southerland. 

George Hardy's "Good Eats" is one of the most up-to-date cafes in North­
west Arkansas. George has been in business eighteen years. He is a native 
Arkansawyer. 

The U and I Cafe is owned and operated by Mrs. R. H. Fetty, pioneer of 
Eureka Springs. 

The No Name Cafe is managed by Jack Shultz, a young man from Okla­
homa. 

Stites' Jitney stand is owned by Bill Stites, pioneer, and managed by the 
Nichols brothers. 

Mrs. M. M. Barrett owns and operates the Tourists Lunch stand near 
Camp Leath. 

Pinkley's Restaurant, Main street,. is owned and operated by Mrs.John 
Pinkley and daughters, Pauline and Lillian. 

Davis Lunch Stand is owned and operated by Fred Davis, a native of 
Eureka Springs. His mother is also a native. Mrs. DaVIS owns the old St. Charles 
hotel, once the home of Gov. Powell Clayton, and the oldest building in Eu­
reka Springs. 

Street Car Lunch Stand is owned and operated by Mrs. Fred Eames. 

The Southern Home is owned and operated by Wallace McQuerry. 
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The Allred hotel is owned and operated by· Mr. and Mrs. Louie Haneke, pio­
neers and famous story tellers of Eureka Springs. 

Mrs. Arch Kimberling is manager of the Thach hotel on West Moun-
tain-one of the most beautiful hotels in the city. · 

Hotel Main is owned and operated by Mrs. Lizzie Harris on North Main 
Street. Mr. Harris was accidentally shot while squirrel hunting last fall. 

The Landaker is one place that has never changed hands and is operated by 
Mrs. Eva Landaker-Calkins daughter of Peter Landaker who built the Landaker 
hotel and graded Main street for the first time. The family came to Eureka 
Springs in 1881. 

GARAGES 

Cook and Border garage is one of the largest and most popular garages 
of Northwest Arkansas and has a branch shop at Rogers, Ark. John P. Cook, 
father of Fred, came to Eureka Springs in1879 and was one of the early busi­
ness men. Fred is a native of Eureka Springs. Charles Border, junior member 
of the firm, came to Eureka Springs froin Texas. Cook and Border have been 
in business fourteen years. 

J. A. Blunk's repair and supply company is one of the largest of its kind in 
Northwest Arkansas. Mr. and Mrs. Blunk came to our city on the strength of 
our attractive sign that greets the tourist as he enters the gateway from 
Seligman. They came out of curiosity and decided to stay because of the 
uniqueness and attractiveness of Eureka Springs and now they are more in 
love with it than when they came and the city has no greater boosters than 
they. 

Dotson Motor Company, Inc., in Mattocks' Garage, South Main street. 
Hussey Garage, owned and operated by McKinley Hussey, a native of 

Eureka Springs. 

City Garage is owned by Floyd Slane. 

CAMPGROUNDS 

Mrs. Ella Shuman-Monagan came here in 1900 and owned the first steam 
laundry in Eureka Springs. She later married J. A. Monagan, a pioneer of this 
city. They now have a tourist camp on their home ground near the standpipe; 
also much property in Eureka Springs. 

Ray Freeman is owner of Camp Joy, near the standpipe. 
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POSTAL FORCE 

Dr. Charles was appointed postmaster in 1924 and succeeded H. 
Goudelock. 

Robert Hudson, assistant postmaster, began in the Mailing Division and 
served as clerk and carrier and became assistant postmaster at the death of J. 
A. Bridgeford in 1919. He has been connected with the postal force twenty­
five years. 

Postal Clerks-George Nichoalds, Norval Cunningham and Ed Taggart. 
City Carriers-Harry Wickham, Floyd Wright and Miles Call. 
Rural Carriers-Basal Cunningham and Russell Jackson. 

Walter Burris is ugeneral housekeeper'' of the postoffice. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

Grover Roark operates a bus line that connects with practically all cities 
of interest in Arkansas and is known as the Roark Transportation Company. 
Mr. and Mrs. Roark are both natives of Carroll county. 

Model Steam Laundry is owned and operated by the Misses Ulah and 
Allie Pitts, popular business women of Eureka Springs. Their parents were 
among the early arrivals of Eureka Springs, and Miss Ulah still lives in the 
house in which she was born, which is one of the oldest in the city. Miss 
Allie owns half interest in partnership farm with Miss Sarah Sawyer. 

Crows Tue service is owned and operated by Errel Crow, who for a num­
ber of years owned and operated the Crow Bakery. Errel is a native of Eureka 
Springs. 

B. J. Rosewater, is manager of the Yeastole Company,Inc. This product 
was discovered by Dr. T. J. Allen and has become so famous that it is now 
shipped to .several European countries as well as all over the United States. 
Other products will be manufactured by this company in the near future. 

B. J. Smith operates a jewelry, and souvenir shop on Spring street and 
has been in business twenty-four years. 

The Rankin Jewelry shop is operated by S.A.Rankin. 

Miss Zelma Clem operates the Ozark Rose Beauty Shoppe on Spring 
street. 

B. L. Rosser's Studio is located on Spring Street where he has been in 
the phototography business for twenty-five years. 

The Eureka Floral Company is owned by Albert Ingalls and managed 
by Mr. and Mrs. Victor Mcbee. 

Sprin~er's confectionery store is operated by Mr. and Mrs. Chas.Springer 
on Spnng street. 

The Western Union Telegraph is operated by Jesse Miller. 

V.L.Hudlow is manager of the Hampton and Hudlow 

Bare & Swett, insurance abstracts and real estate company was estab­
lished in 1908. Mr. Bare, senior member of the firm, has been a resident of 
Eureka Springs thirty-three years. Mr. Swett came here in 1885 and his father 
operated a bakery in the earJy days. 
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Perry Mark owns the Basin block which is one of the most up-to-date 
business centers in Eureka Springs. He is in the real estate and insurance busi­
ness. He married Miss Ina Cochran. one of the most popular young girls of 
Eureka Springs. Her father.John Cochran, was one of the early property hold­
ers. Mr, and Mrs. Hughes, who owned and operated the old Western hotel, 
were her great grandparents and their granddaughter, Mora, was one of the 
"cured" of the early days and later married Ed Chandler. 

M. F. Gear, real estate and insurance, came to Eureka Springs in 1880. 

A. F. Geolitz. manager, Barnsdall Refining Company, South Main street. 

Monumental works is owned and operated by N. L. Burkhart. North 
· Main street. 

The Bottling works is owned and operated by Frank Helm on North 
Main street. 

Eagle Thomas and Glade Miller, Eureka Majestic Radio Shop, Spring 
street. 

Sweeney's Cleaning and Pressing Shop,. owned and operated by S. H. 
Bullock. 

Setzer's Cleaning and Pressing Shop, Spring street, operated by Frank 
Setzer. 

Roach and Hanson produce house, South Main street. 

Otis McGinnis operates a feed store and stable on South Main street. 
He came here in the early days and has been in business thirty years. He owned 
and operated a livery stable when Eureka Springs was noted for its equestri­
ans. 

Arch Kimberling is remembered by the horseback riders of the early 
days, and now furnishes the steeds for the Crescent college girls. 

Walter Fenner is local manager of the Southwestern Gas and Electric Com­
pany in Eureka Springs. 

Paul Miller has been freight agent for a number of years. 

Ernest Braswell has been ticket agent for the M. & N. A. for thirty years 
or more. 

Joe T. McKimmey is one of the city's commissioners and attorney at law. 
Was born and reared on a farm within a few miles of Eureka Sprinf;S, His 
father and mother were among the pioneers who came to Eureka Spnngs in 
1881. 
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John K. Butt, the son of Senator and Mrs. F. 0. Butt, is a prominent young 
lawyer and a candidate for representative. He was born in Carroll county and 
educated in Eureka Springs and took up the profession of law when only a 
lad. 

Fred Mattocks came here in the year of 1880 and has been in business 
since a youth. He owns the Mattocks garage, and until a few years ago owned 
and operated the Mattocks black shop, which was owned by his father, Joe 
Mattocks, and is now known as the Schnitzer blacksmith shop. G. N. Schnitzer 
is its owner and proprietor. 

Silas David, a pioneer who came to Eureka Springs when there were ten 
houses and forty-two tents, owns and operates a blacksmith shop on South 
Main street. 

Prof. M. L McCall has taught in our public schools for overt~ years 
and has stood shoulder to shoulder with Prof. Barnett. Mr. McCall 1s now 
assistant superintendent and is loved by all his pupils. Finis McCall, his 
brother, has also taught for a number of years and his wife, Mrs. Hattie McCall, 
still teaches in our school. Their father, George McCall, was one of the pio­
neers of Carroll county and served for many years as Justice of the Peace. 

Mr. and Mrs. George Hurt are two more of Eureka Springs early citizens 
and have an old scrap book in which they have kept all the happenings of the 
early years, which is very interesting reading to me. 
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